
1 

City Council Meeting 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 33 SOUTH MAIN STREET, COLFAX, CA 

Mayor Joe Fatula  Mayor Pro Tem Marnie Mendoza 

Councilmembers  Kim Douglass  Sean Lomen  Trinity Burruss

Colfax City Council Meetings are ADA compliant. If you need special assistance to 
participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (530) 346-2313 at least 72 
hours prior to make arrangements for ensuring your accessibility. 

August 28, 2019 

Page 1 of 2  

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

August 28, 2019

Regular Session:  6:00PM 

1 CLOSED SESSION (NO CLOSED SESSION ITEMS) 

2 OPEN SESSION 

2A. Call Open Session to Order 

2B. Pledge of Allegiance 

2C. Roll Call 

2D. Approval of Agenda Order 
This is the time for changes to the agenda to be considered including removal, postponement, or change to the agenda sequence. 

Recommended Action:  By motion, accept the agenda as presented or amended. 

3 PRESENTATION

3A. Community Branding Design Update (Pages 1-22)

4 PUBLIC HEARING (NO PUBLIC HEARING) 

5 CONSENT CALENDAR 

Matters on the Consent Agenda are routine in nature and will be approved by one blanket motion with a Council vote. No 

discussion of these items ensues unless specific items are pulled for discussion and separate action.  If you wish to have an 

item pulled from the Consent Agenda for discussion, please notify the Mayor. 

Recommended Action:  Approve Consent Calendar 

5A. 

5B. 

Minutes – Regular Meeting of August 14, 2019 (Pages 23-28)
Recommendation: Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of August 14, 2019. 

Cash Summary Report – July 2019 (Pages 29-40)
Recommendation:  Accept and file. 

Notice to the Public: City Council, when considering a matter scheduled for hearing, will take the following actions: 

1. Presentation by Staff

2. Open the Public Hearing

3. Presentation, when applicable, by Applicant

4. Accept Public Testimony

5. When applicable, Applicant rebuttal period

6. Close Public Hearing (No public comment is taken, hearing is closed)

7. Council comments and questions

8. City Council Action

Public Hearings that are continued will be so noted. The continued Public Hearing will be listed on a subsequent council 

agenda and posting of that agenda will serve as notice 





BRANDING COLFAX

Item 3A

1



OUR PROCESS

Following the outl ine of our proposal,  with the City Council  
appointed team of Mayor Joe Fatula,  Councilwoman Trinity 
Burruss, Fred Abbott,  Chamber of Commerce Representatives 
Tim Ryan, Ted Zwerdling, and Amy Andrews with the 
leadership of City Manager Wes Heathcock , we:

- Held a kick-off meeting collecting input

- Held three progressive work/design reviews

- Are here to present a recap of this team’s work

Item 3A

2



RATE  
TH ESE
S IGNS

Signs are designed to 
provide a message. 

How would you 
grade these signs?

What message about 
Colfax do you get 
from these signs?

Item 3A

3



Item 3A

4



COLFAX T RAFF IC

11 Million Vehicles* 
Pass Colfax 
Every Year

What if 1% of that 
traffic came into 

Colfax?   
= 110,000+ visitors

* As per Caltrans Statistics

Item 3A

5



The team established these core 
messages:

- Recreation

- Family

- History

- Railroad/Trains

Item 3A

6



S URROUNDING
TO WN B RANDS

We looked at 
how local towns 
were branding 
themselves.

Item 3A

7



B REAK ING 
OUT S IDE  TH E
COLFAX S EAL

We looked at 
ways to 
transform the 
current Colfax 
City Logo into a 
brand.

Item 3A

8



OT HER C IT IES

Top 10 

USA 
Recreational 
Towns

Item 3A

9



OT HER C IT IES

Top 5 
California 
Historic Towns

Item 3A

10



HISTORIC 
FONTS
We researched 
font styles circa 
1865 – 1910, 
selecting two 
fonts that met 
the criteria as 
branding 
options

Item 3A

11



Item 3A

12



Item 3A

13



Item 3A

14



Item 3A

15



F R A M E D  F O N T

A background added 
to the font style 
allows the brand to 
be separated from 
other background 
pictures or graphics.  
Here are a few 
considerations for 
the frame behind the 
Colfax brand.

Item 3A

16



USE CASE

The brand version 
depends on its USE. 
Sometimes it becomes 
necessary to eliminate 
the border and 
background.  

This example would work 
well for embroidery,  such 
as a baseball cap or 
uniform.

Item 3A

17



Item 3A

18



Item 3A

19



Item 3A

20



Item 3A

21



Thank You

Item 3A

22



City of Colfax 1 
City Council Minutes August 14, 2019 

6A.     City of Colfax 
    City Council Minutes 
    Regular Meeting of Wednesday, August 14, 2019 
    City Hall Council Chambers 
    33 S. Main Street, Colfax CA 

CLOSED SESSION 

There was no closed session at this meeting. 

1OPEN SESSION 

1A.Call Open Session to Order 
Mayor Fatula called the open session to order at 7:00P.M. 

1B.Pledge of Allegiance 
Boy Scout Joseph Painter led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

1C.Roll Call 
Council members present:  Burruss, Douglass, Lomen, Mendoza, Fatula 
Council members absent: None 

1D.Approval of Agenda Order 
By MOTION, approve the agenda as presented. 
The motion was made by Council Member Lomen and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem 
Mendoza and approved by the following voice vote: 
AYES:  Burruss, Douglass, Lomen, Mendoza, Fatula 
NOES: 
ABSENT:  

2PRESENTATION 

There were no presentations at this meeting. 

3CONSENT CALENDAR  

3A. Minutes – Regular Meeting of July 24, 2019 

 Recommendation:  Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of July 24, 2019. 

3B. Quarterly Investment Report- Quarter Ending June 30, 2019 

Recommendation: Receive and file. 

3C. Bureau Veritas Contract Extension for Building Inspection Services 

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution 2019-33 authorizing the City Manager to 

extend the contract with Bureau Veritas for building inspection services on an as 

needed basis not to exceed $108,000 for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020. 

3D. South Auburn Street and I-80 Roundabout Project (Federal Project No. CML-

5187(010) – Colfax Todds Valley Consolidated Tribe Contract 

Item 5A

23



City of Colfax 2 
City Council Minutes August 14, 2019 

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution 2019-34 authorizing the City Manager to 

enter into an agreement with Colfax Todds Valley Consolidated Tribe in an amount 

not to exceed $15,000. 

3E. Osborne Development Proposal CEQA Document Preparation – Millennium 

Planning and Engineering Contract 

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution 2019-35 authorizing the City Manager to 

execute an agreement with Millennium Planning and Engineering for the Osborn 

Development project CEQA document in an amount not to exceed $21,100. 

*** End of the Consent Calendar ***

By MOTION, approve the consent calendar. 
The motion was made by Council Member Lomen and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem 
Mendoza and approved by the following voice vote: 
AYES:  Burruss, Douglass, Lomen, Mendoza, Fatula 
NOES: 
ABSENT:  

4 PUBLIC COMMENT 

None 

5. COUNCIL, STAFF AND OTHER REPORTS

5A. Committee Reports and Colfax Informational Items – All Councilmembers 

Council Member Douglass reported on the Placer County and City Officials Dinner hosted 

by Colfax, a School Give-a-Way event at the Baptist Church, a meeting with Placer County 

Supervisor Cindy Gustafson, and the Policy and Innovation Committee with SACOG. He 

spoke about two Pioneer Community Energy meetings and further explained a rate 

increase vote that took place. He also announced the new pharmacy in town is open.  

Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza reported on Governor Newsom’s visit in Colfax, where he 

announced they are hiring 400 new firefighters to CalFIRE. She reported on the Placer 

County and City Officials Dinner in Colfax, the Heritage Trail through Dutch Flat, the 

meeting with Supervisor Gustafson where insurance cancellations and increases were 

discussed. She also spoke about the 2nd Annual Indian Days on August 24th at Sierra Vista 

Center, at 10am.  

Mayor Fatula reported on the Colfax High School Kick-off day for opening day, Governor 

Newsom’s visit, stating there will actually be 393 new firefighters being hired on to 

Item 5A

24



City of Colfax 3 
City Council Minutes August 14, 2019 

CalFIRE. He spoke about the Shaded Fuel Break, and the Placer County City Officials 

Dinner at the landfill site. He suggested looking into outdoor sports at the landfill location. 

5B. City Operations Update – City Manager 

City Manager Heathcock reported that on July 26th there was a lift station force main 
sewer break resulting in an estimated 22,000 gallons wastewater discharge. He spoke 
about potential fines from the Regional Water Board and the impacts of those fines. He 
also reported on a 6.5 million sewer grant application/ contract with the Regional Board, 
which will be out for review in 3 weeks. He estimates construction by next spring.  

Mayor Fatula highlighted what this sewer grant could provide for the City. 

5C.  Agency Partner Reports 

Sgt. Ty Conners, Colfax Station Commander, asked for a moment of silence for Officer 
Andre Moye, and gave details of the tragic situation in Riverside that led to his death. He 
spoke about the Colfax Facebook Group that is a subset of Placer County Sheriff’s page, 
that provides information and allows for posts from public. He spoke about an officer 
staffing change (he will introduce the new Officer in to Council in September), mapping 
progress update, call and arrest stats, and he recognized staff for the PCCOA Dinner and 
the Governor’s visit.  

Council Member Lomen reported on behalf of Brian Eagan- Battalion Chief, CalFIRE, 
Placer County Fire, City of Colfax Fire Department. He reported on hydraulic rescue tools, 
annual recertification of fire gear, fire apparatus are all in working order, volunteers 
approved to provide fire apparatus and EMT at the Jr. Falcon Football games. He also 
provided updates on a grant, CalFIRE in the region, the Shaded Fuel Break and Fire 
activity.  

Tim Ryan, Colfax Area Chamber of Commerce, reported on the Placer County City Officials 
Dinner, Summerfest, Railhead Grand Opening and Ribbon Cutting, Coffee and 
Conversation with Supervisor Gustafson, Railroad Days Fundraising Dinner, an upcoming 
Colfax Drug Company Grand Opening and Ribbon Cutting (8/21), the Chamber Mixer at 
Dutch Flat Hotel (8/27), and a new salon business on Depot Street. Conversation followed 
regarding local business trends. 

Foxy McCleary, Colfax, reminded everyone of the VFW Breakfast on 2nd Sundays, Legion 
Dinner on 3rd Thursday, and a free yoga class at Sierra Vista. She spoke about the low 
attendance at the Railroad Days fundraiser.  

Fred Abbott, Event Liaison for the City of Colfax, spoke about the Art Walk on the 16th, 3rd 
Annual Lions Car Show on 17th of August, Railroad Days Fundraiser, and the plans for the 
Railroad Day Event. 

Item 5A

25



City of Colfax 4 
City Council Minutes August 14, 2019 

6. COUNCIL BUSINESS

6A.  Contract Award for Culver Street Rehabilitation Project – Phase I 

City Manager Wes Heathcock presented this item. He provided background and 
explained the project. He explained Simpson & Simpson was determined to be the 
lowest bidder, yet still higher than the engineers estimate. He explained the two 
different amounts in the actions requested.  

Public Comment: Tim Ryan, resident of Colfax, asked about Culver Street past 
Newman Street.  

City Manager Heathcock explained after Newman Street, this street becomes Pine 
Street. He explained the process and why this street was chosen for rehabilitation. 

Council Member Burruss asked about the possible benefit of going back out to bid on 
the project.  

Recommendation: Discuss and consider adopting a Resolution 36-2019 authorizing 
the City Manager to: 
1. Award a construction contract to Simpson and Simpson Inc. in the amount of
$227,453 and authorize the City Manager to execute change orders up to the
budgeted amount.
2. Adopt the total project budget for the Culver Street Rehabilitation Project – Phase I

in the amount of $307,045.
The motion was made by Council Member Burruss and seconded by Council Member
Lomen and approved by the following voice vote:
AYES:  Burruss, Douglass, Lomen, Mendoza, Fatula
NOES:
ABSENT:

6B. City Clerk 

City Manager Wes Heathcock presented this item. He explained the background, spoke 
about the application and interview process, and said he is recommending current 
employee Jaclyn Collier for this position.  

Jaclyn Collier introduced herself and expressed her interest in this community and this 
position.  

Recommendation: Discuss and consider adopting a Resolution 37-2019 appointing 
Jaclyn Collier as City Clerk. 
The motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza and seconded by Council Member 
Burruss and approved by the following voice vote: 
AYES:  Burruss, Douglass, Lomen, Mendoza, Fatula 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 

Item 5A

26



City of Colfax 5 
City Council Minutes August 14, 2019 

6C. City Engineering Consultant Services 

City Manager Wes Heathcock presented this item. He provided background and 
explained the RFQ process conducted.  

Mayor Fatula asked how this contract compares with the current contract with 
Coastland Consulting Services.  

City Manager Heathcock explained this contract and services included. He also spoke 
about the positive history with this firm and the roundabout project. 

Recommendation: Discuss and consider adopting a Resolution 38-2019 authorizing 
the City Manager to enter into a Contract Agreement with GHD for City Engineering 
services for a term of 3-year with an option for a 2-year extension. 
The motion was made by Council Member Lomen and seconded by Council Member 
Burruss and approved by the following voice vote: 
AYES:  Burruss, Douglass, Lomen, Mendoza, Fatula 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 

9. GOOD OF THE ORDER

City Manager Heathcock gave an update on the roundabout project. 

Council Member Douglass spoke about the caboose being open this weekend to the 

public and warned every one of gas thieves in the area. 

Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza spoke about her recent travel over 7 states, visiting national 

parks, attending events, including a mock disaster preparedness event with a pancake 

breakfast with over 700 volunteers. She also spoke about microbusiness licensing for 

cannabis and suggested a committee to look at this issue, a consensus of the Council 

referred this item to staff to form this committee and bring back at the next 

Council meeting. Both Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza and Lomen would like to be 

committee members. She also spoke about her friend Robert Wells, National Security 

Advisor, who helped get the old stagecoach maps. She said he will be doing a book 

signing on Oct 20th in the Council Chambers, from 2-3pm. She reminded everyone of 

the September 5-8th Gold Country Fair in Auburn. 

Council Member Lomen introduced Officer Nave and asked if he would like to provide 

an agency report. 

Item 5A

27



City of Colfax 6 
City Council Minutes August 14, 2019 

Officer Nave, CHP, announced Caltrans is closing Hwy 50 between the end of 

September and early Oct, Placerville to Myers for bridge work and the impact on 

Highway 80. Officer Nave was asked to write a short article for Colfax Connections.  

Mayor Fatula spoke about concerns over sewer billing. Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza and 

Mayor Fatula volunteered for the subcommittee assignment. Committee will  meet 

with the new city engineers (GHD) about sewer rates, and will report back in a month. 

10. ADJOURNMENT

As there was no further business on the agenda, Mayor Fatula adjourned the meeting, 
without objection, at 7:13 PM. 

Respectfully submitted to City Council this 28th day of August, 2019 

__________________________________________________ 
Amy Lind, Interim City Clerk 

Item 5A

28



Staff Report to City Council 

City of Colfax 1 

Staff Report August 28, 2019 Cash Summary Report – July 2019 

FOR THE AUGUST 28, 2019 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

From: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

Prepared by: Laurie Van Groningen, Finance Director 

Subject: Cash Summary Report – July 2019 
Budget Impact Overview: 

N/A:   √ Funded: Un-funded: Amount: Fund(s): 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Accept and file. 

Summary/Background 

These monthly financial reports include General Fund Reserved Cash Analysis Graphs and the City of 

Colfax Cash Summary Report (with supporting documentation).  The reports are prepared monthly on 

a cash basis and are reconciled to the General Ledger accounting system, previous reports, and bank 

statements.  Detailed budget comparisons are provided as a mid-year report and also as part of the 

proposed budget process each year. 

The purpose of these reports is to provide status of funds and transparency for Council and the public 

of the financial transactions of the City. 

The attached reports reflect an overview of the financial transactions of the City of Colfax in 

July 2019.  Monthly highlights include: 

• Fiscal year 2018-2019 budgeted fund transfers have been completed and posted to the ending

cash balances reported for June 2019.

• Cash balance increases for June included:

o Fund 385 - Roundabout project.  The balance of the Developer Road Improvements in

the amount of $84,000 was received and recorded in July.  Note:  The first payment on

the Construction contract will be processed in August and will be immediately

submitted for reimbursement from Caltrans.

• Negative cash fund balances are due to timing of funding allocations and reimbursements.

o Fund 250 – The request for Fiscal year funding via Placer County Transportation

Agency (PCTPA) will be submitted as soon as allocations are approved by the PCTPA

Board (scheduled for August Board meeting). Full funding of budgeted transfers from

Gas Tax Fund and General Fund will be recorded in fiscal year end closing process

(June 2020).

Item 5B

29



City of Colfax 2 

Staff Report  
August 28, 2019 

Cash Summary Report – July 2019 

Attachments 
1. General Fund Reserved Cash Analysis Graphs

a. Cash Analysis – Balance

b. Expenses by Month

c. Revenues by Month

2. Cash Activity Reports

a. Cash Summary

b. Cash Transactions Report – by individual fund

c. Check Register Report - Accounts Payable

d. Daily Cash Summary Report (Cash Receipts)

Item 5B

30



*This is a recommended General Fund Reserve Target of 25% (3 months) of annual General Fund Revenues.  The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) recommends that general‐
purpose governments establish unrestricted fund balance goals to be no less than two months of regular general fund operating revenues or regular expenditures.

Prev Yr Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun
Cash Balance FY2019‐20 $2,013 $2,069
Cash Balance FY2018‐19 $1,275 $1,398 $1,444 $1,447 $1,329 $1,420 $1,336 $1,672 $1,812 $1,760 $1,893 $2,151 $2,013
Cash Balance FY2017‐18 $1,086 $1,050 $828 $905 $954 $983 $962 $1,280 $1,212 $1,168 $1,250 $1,493 $1,396
Cash Balance FY2016‐17 $838 $829 $750 $835 $897 $802 $889 $1,133 $981 $1,022 $938 $1,034 $1,086
Cash Balance FY2015‐16 $768 $670 $666 $562 $561 $601 $466 $717 $647 $569 $605 $831 $838
Cash Balance FY2014‐15 $240 $181 $217 $167 $209 $284 $253 $528 $491 $489 $385 $691 $773
Cash Balance FY2013‐14 $15 $(57) $(20) $45 $(55) $(34) $36 $233 $134 $69 $79 $225 $240
Cash Balance FY2012‐13 $(287) $(286) $(314) $(438) $(383) $(391) $(380) $(221) $(173) $(144) $(212) $37 $15
*Reserves (Ops, Cap, Pen) $645 $695 $695 $695 $695 $695 $695 $695 $695 $695 $695 $695 $695
Budget FY2018‐19 $2,013 $2,013 $2,013 $2,013 $2,013 $2,013 $2,013 $2,013 $2,013 $2,013 $2,013 $2,013 $2,013

 $(500)

 $‐

 $500

 $1,000

 $1,500

 $2,000

 $2,500

City of Colfax ‐ July 2019
General Fund Reserved Cash Analysis

(Dollars in Thousands)

Fiscal Year 2018‐19  >>

* General Fund (GF) Reserves per adopted budget.

Attachment 1a Item 5B

31



 $‐

 $20

 $40

 $60

 $80

 $100

 $120

 $140

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

City of Colfax ‐ June 2019
General Fund Reserved Cash ‐ Expenses by Month

(Dollars in Thousands)

General Expenses Sheriff/Fire Animal Control Contract

Insurance Deposit to SCORE Risk Pool Audit, Grants, HR Consult Capital Outlay/Repairs

Legal Expenses

Attachment 1b
Item 5B

32



 $‐

 $20

 $40

 $60

 $80

 $100

 $120

 $140

 $160

 $180

 $200

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

City of Colfax ‐ July 2019
General Fund Reserved Cash ‐ Revenues by Month

(Dollars in Thousands)

Franchises (WAVE, Recology, PGE) Motor Vehicle In Lieu Other Property Tax Sales Tax Business Licenses Planning Fees Interest Income

Attachment 1c
Item 5B

33



Attachment 2a Item 5B

34



Attachment 2b Item 5B

35



Attachment 2c Item 5B

36



Attachment 2c Item 5B

37



Attachment 2c Item 5B

38



Attachment 2d Item 5B

39



Attachment 2d Item 5B

40



Staff Report to City Council 

City of Colfax 1 

Staff Report August 28, 2019 City Funding for Colfax Railroad Days Event 

FOR THE AUGUST 28, 2019 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

From: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

Prepared by: Jaclyn Collier, City Clerk 

Subject: City Funding Support for Colfax Railroad Days Event 
Budget Impact Overview: 

N/A:   Funded:  Un-funded: Amount: $500 Fund(s): 100-110 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt Resolution __-2019 authorizing a $500 donation to Colfax 

Railroad Days LLC., coordinators of the 2019 Colfax Railroad Days event, as the City’s contribution to 

the success of the Colfax Railroad Days event. 

Summary/Background 

The City Council of the City of Colfax traditionally donates $500 to support certain City-wide events 

each year. The Colfax Railroad Days Inc., organizers of the 2019 Colfax Railroad Days event, have 

requested $500 as the City’s contribution to the success of the event which is scheduled for September 

21st and 22nd, 2019. 

Staff recommends the authorizing of the donation of $500 for Colfax Railroad Days. 

FISCAL IMPACT:   

Funding is within City Council’s budget for Economic Development from Fund 100-110. 

Attachments 

1. Resolution __-2019

2. Donation Request Letter

Item 5C

41



City of Colfax 

Resolution __-2019 

1 

City Funding Support for Colfax Railroad Days Event 

City of Colfax 
City Council 

Resolution № __-2019 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLFAX 
AUTHORIZING A $500 DONATION TO COLFAX RAILROAD DAYS INC., 

COORDINATORS OF THE 2019 RAILROAD DAYS EVENT, AS THE 
CITY’S CONTRIBUTION TO THE SUCCESS OF COLFAX RAILROAD 

DAYS EVENT 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Colfax traditionally donates $500 to support certain City- 

wide events each year; and, 

WHEREAS, the City requires the organizer to request the funding amount and how the money will be 

spent; and, 

WHEREAS, the Colfax Railroad Days Inc., organizers of the 2019 Colfax Railroad Days event, have 
requested $500 as the City’s contribution to the success of the event which is scheduled for September 
21st and 22nd, 2019. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the City Council of the City of Colfax, approves a donation of 

$500 to Colfax Railroad Days Inc. as the City’s contribution to the success of Colfax Railroad Days event 

in 2019. 

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED at the Regular 

Meeting of the City Council of the City of Colfax held on the 28th of August 2019 by the following vote 

of the Council: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 

Joe Fatula, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Jaclyn Collier, City Clerk 

Item 5C

42



Attachment 2
Item 5C

43



Staff Report to City Council 

City of Colfax 1 

Staff Report August 28, 2019 Commercial Cannabis Micro Business 
Subcommittee 

FOR THE AUGUST 28, 2019 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

From: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

Prepared by: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

Subject: Commercial Cannabis Micro Business Subcommittee 
Budget Impact Overview: 

N/A:   Funded: Un-funded: Amount: Fund(s): 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Discuss and consider establishing a commercial cannabis micro business 

subcommittee. 

Summary/Background 

Staff received direction from Council at the August 14, 2019 City Council meeting to bring forward an 

agenda item to create an ad hoc subcommittee that will evaluate the process to establish a commercial 

cannabis micro business license regulation and develop the regulation language, if appropriate. If 

Council establishes the ad hoc subcommittee, staff will work with it to identify the applicable 

considerations and resources needed to achieve the objective. 

If Council establishes the subcommittee, Staff recommends that Council appoint two members of the 

elected body to serve on it.  

FISCAL IMPACT:  

N/A 

Item 8A

44



Staff Report to City Council 

City of Colfax 1 

Staff Report August 28, 2019 Colfax Hotel Business Use 

FOR THE AUGUST 28, 2019 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

From: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

Prepared by: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

Subject: Colfax Hotel Business Use 
Budget Impact Overview: 

N/A:   Funded: Un-funded: Amount: Fund(s): 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Discuss the Colfax Hotel business use concept and provide direction to 

staff. 

Summary/Background 

Over the years, the Colfax Hotel (10 Grass Valley Street) was primarily used for lodging with varying 

levels of commercial business use on the bottom floor. The past 30+ years the building has been 

unoccupied, thereby, reducing the economic strength of the downtown area.  

The City of Colfax was recently approached by a potential buyer (Aziz) for the Colfax Hotel asking if 

council would support converting the building into apartments on all floor levels. Aziz has experience 

turning commercial buildings into multi-residential use in the Sacramento area. The concept is to create 

450 ft2 apartments in the $850-$950 rent range. Based on the square footage, the building would have 

approximately 21 residential units.  

Staff did request the potential buyer look at the first floor use as restaurant space as part of their concept. 

Aziz’s realtor stated based on their calculations the property owner would need to charge $2.30/ft2 for 

the restaurant space to turn a profit. The prime commercial space on the I-80 corridor is charging 

$1.25/ft2 for the same commercial use. Ideally, the multi-commercial use would create the best outcome 

for the downtown economy. Conversely, the necessary cost to retain a restaurant on the first floor does 

not appear to be sustainable; therefore, the commercial use as apartments only is a more viable option 

for the building. 

Staff is requesting council discuss and provide direction on the proposed Colfax Hotel business use 

concept. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

N/A 

Item 8B

45


	022 - Agenda pg 2
	Draft Agenda Packet
	02 - Agenda
	03A - Community Branding Design Update Presentation
	05A - Minutes
	05B - Cash Summary Report - July 2019
	Staff Report Cash Summary
	2020-01 Jul Cash Balance Graph Council report
	Attachment 2
	Cash Summary
	Cash Transactions
	Check Register Report
	Daily Cash Summary


	05C - City Funding Support for Colfax Railroad Days Event
	Railroad Days Donation Staff Report
	Railroad Days Donation Resolution
	Railroad Days Donation Request

	08A - Commercial Cannabis Micro Business Subcommittee
	08B - Colfax Hotel Business Use




